
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE.SEA
HARRISONMEMORIALLIBRARYBOARDoFTRUSTEES

AGENDA

Regular Meeting
City Hall
East Side of Monte Verde
between Ocean & Seventh Avenues

Wednesday Nancy Collinso Vice President
February 2-4,2016 Richard Flower, President

9:00 AM Niels Reimers
Tara TwomeY, Treasurer

I. Roll Call

II. Announcements from Board Members and Director

ilI. Appearances
Anyone wishlng to address the Library Board on items within its jurisdiction may do so

now. Please rise, state your name and the matter on which you wish to speak'

Matters not appearinion the Library Board agenda will not receive action at this

meeting. p"esentations will be limited to three minutes, or as established by the

Library Board of Trustees

IV. Approval of Minutes of the January 27,2016 Meeting (pp' 1 - 3)

V. Orders of Business
A. Receiv"ilpo.t r"om Interim Cify Administrator Michael Calhoun regarding

Park Branch Library basement remediation (pp' a -7)
B. Receive report regarding a request from the sunset cultural and community

Center Board to fund $18, 37i in additional costs to expand the Sunset Center
Master Plan scope of work to include the library, and provide direction
(pp.8- 10)

C. Receive .eport from the Carmel Public Library Foundation regarding CPLF
Activities

D. Discuss the possibility of requesting additional open hours for the library and
provide direction regarding forwarding the request to the c_ity council for
consideration as part of the"Fiscal Yeai 2016117 budget deliberations (pp. ll-14)

E. Accept second qriarter distribution from the Carmel Public Library Foundation
in the amount of $72,775 (P. 15)

F. Approve and accept private donation to the Harrison Memorial Library in the
amount of $500 (P. 16 - 17)

G. Authorize library staff to enter into a contract with Califa to connect the library
to the calRen/Cenic high speed broadband network (pp. 18 - 26)

vI. Librarianos Report
Review of monthlY statistics
Library staff recruitments
Oral History project
Update on Library Board appointment



CITY OF CARMEL.BY-THE-SEA
HARRISONMEMORIALLIBRARYBOARDoFTRUSTEES

AGENDA
VII. Treasurer'sReport:

A. Receive Treasurer's RePort
B. Accept October 31, 2015 Financial Statements'
C. Accept January 3l',2016 Check Register'

V[I. Adjournment

The next regularly scheduled Library Board of Trustees meeting will be held March 23'2016'

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Harriso.n Memorial Library Board of Trustees

regarding an item on this agenda will be.uo"" uruituule for public inspection in the-Library Director's office

at the park Branch tinrary-at the corner of Mission & Sixth Streets during normal business hours'

The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities' Carmel-by-the-Sea

City Hall is an accessible facility. The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea telecommunications device for the

Oeaf/Speectr Impaired (T.D.D.) number is l-800-735-2929'

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

l, Jonet Bombard,Library and Community Activities Director for the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea'

DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California' that the

foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin board, posted at the

Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln Avenues and the Carmel Post Office and

distributed to members of the media on FebruarY 19,2016.

Dated this 19th day of February 2ot6 atthe hour of 9:1-5 p.m.

/i
I
)I B&

Janet Bombdrd



I.

MINUTES
HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA

January 27,2016

CALL TO ORDER

The regular meeting of the Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees was held on the above

date at 9:00 a.m. President FLoWER called the meeting to order.

U.

III.

IV.

v.

ROLL CALL:
PRESENT:
ABSENT:
STAFF PRESENT:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NONE
Janet Bombard, LibrarY Director
Carolina Lopez, Library Office Assistant

Board member collins commended the Elkhom Slough progfam.

APPEARANCES:

No appearances.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Board Member COLLINS moved to, { Mi the ber
Meetins. seconded by Board M.*b.t REIMERS and carried by the following roll call vote:

COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NONE
NONE.
NONE

vI. ORDERS OF BUSINESS:

A. Receive report from the carmel Public Library Foundation regarding cPLF
activities

CPLF Executive Director Amy Donohue informed the board of upcoming programs. Donohue

also extended a personal invitation to the board for the Donor Salute which is coming up in
March. The winier 2015 newsletter is in the plocess of being mailed out'

B. Receive report from the Carmel Public Library Foundation regarding contract with
Group4 Architects

CpLF Executive Director Amy Donohue discussed the contract with Group4 architects.



c. Discuss the possibility of requesting additional library open hours from the city council

fortheFiscalYear2016/17budgetandprovidedirection.

Marilyn Kren spoke to the Board about having the library open on Sundays' Kren also

distributed a letter to the editor of the Herald r.*rpupt'from library patron Beverly Borgman

regarding opening on Sundays. After discussing the issue, the Board asked the Library Director

to prepare alternaiive schedules/hours and bring recommendations to the next meeting'

Board Member COLLINS moved to,
rve

b; arried bY the following roll call

COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NONE
NONE

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN: NONE

D. Approve Fiscal year 2016117 budget amendment in the amount of $11,100 in extra funding
from the carmet Public Library Foundation and allocate the amount of the New

Equipment budget

After discussion, Board Member TwoMEY moved to, Accept the budset amendment in the
fundi Fount of

AYE,S:
NOES:
ABSENT:

AYES:
NOE,S:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

seconded by Board Member REIMERS

ABSTAIN: NONE

E. Review CalRen/Cenic Broadband project to date and provide direction if necessary

The Library Director reviewed the project to date, and answered Board questions'
Board Member 'IWOMEY moved to, 

-have 
the Librarv Di

100 megabits per second connection-for CalRen/Cenic Broadband. seconded by Board

lrt.r"U". COLLINS and carried by the following roll call vote:

COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NONE
NONE

COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NONE
NONE
NONE

VII. LIBRARIAN'SREPORT:

Libryy Director Bombard reviewed the monthly statistics with the Board.
Bombard updated the Board with regard the status of the current staff recruitments' The Food for
Fines program was a success, forgiving $72.00 in fees at the park branch and $135.00 at the main
library. The City will appoint u r.* tibru.y Trustee at the March City Council meeting' The

Library Directoi gu,r" th" board an update on the park branch basement and will keep them
informed as things develoP.

VIII. TREASURERS REPORT:

and carried by the following roll call vote:



Board
rna

Board Treasurer I'womey reviewed the November and December financial statements and check

register with the Board urd urr*"red questions about the financial statements' There wele no

extraordinary expenses that needed special attention from the Board' The october financial

statements *.r. n.u", upp.or.d and will come before the Board at the February meeting'

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Member COLLINS moved to,
C

following roll call vote:

COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NONE
NONE
NONE

X. ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business to come before the Board, President Flower declared the meeting

adioumed it to,:o am. The next regular meeting is scheduled for Februaty 24,2016'

Respectfully submitted,
Carolina Lopez, Administrative Assistanl

Approved by:

d of Trustees

November dL -D9gemDer
Lorrd.d by Board Member REIMERS and carried



HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Staff RePort
FebruarY 24,2016

Harrison Memorial Library Board of TrusteesTo:

From:

Subject:

Janet Bombard, LibrarY Director

Receive report from lnterim City Administrator Michael Calhoun regarding Park Branch

Libra ry basement remediation

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
state ofthe Park Branch

tfie Carmel Public Library Foundation Executive Committee, out of concern as to the

Library basement, hired an attorney to communicate with the City about the matter'

ln a letter dated Febru ary g,2o1.6to City Attorney Don Freeman - and on which the Library Board of Trustees

were copied (Attachment 1) - attorney chris campbell reiterates the cPLF Executive committee concerns that

not enough is being done to remediate the mold in the basement.

ln 2013, the city contracted with Holland woolley of A.R.E. inspections to perform a visual mold assessment

and sampling of the park Branch Basement. More recently, the following steps have been taken with regard to

addressing the problem:
o On December g, ZOLS Mr. Woolley performed follow-up testing of the basement.

. On December t1,,2OLS Mr. Woolley provided a written report to the City.

r on January 15,20L6lnterim city Administrator met with the cPLF Executive committee and provided

AREI December lLth report'
o on January 7,2016 staff met with M3 Environmental consulting.
r On January tg,2}L6City staff, three certified contractors and a consultant from M3 Environmental

Consulting performed a walk-through inspection of the basement. After that meeting, the contractors

determined that the scope of the work was greater than had first been anticipated.
r On January Ig,2O'J.6Garrett Rodewald of M3 Environmental Consulting performed a follow-up

sampling of the mold in the Park Branch Basement'
o On January 27,201,6 staff met with M3 Environmental Consulting to discuss a new work plan'

. On February t7, ZOt6 M3 Environmental Consulting provided a report on recommended guidelines for

long-term conta inment'
o On February lg,2016, staff conducted a second site visit with M3 Environmental Consulting to develop

a work plan.

The next phase of the project will be to invite a mechanical engineer to evaluate the current ventilation system,

proceed with implementation of the competitive bid process, and award a construction bid'

lnterim City Administrator Michael Calhoun will attend the meeting to provide the Board with more

information regarding the work that has happened to date, and the project's next steps'

-i



All Acr{ PLFUT I

HBTsTNGER, Bucr<
ArtonNnYs -tt

& Monnrs
Lew

M-e,r,cor,u S. Mrr-r-.tao (1914-1999)

J.lrurs G. HrrsrNcee, JP'
SroNev M. MoRels*
Crrnts C-quearlr,
LrNrc C. Loztap..
*CEB?IEED SPECIAilST . ESTATE PUNNTNG
TEUST ND PROBTE LAW
STATE BAR OF CALIFONA
BOAIII] OF LEGAL SPECIAUZATION

RETTEED

Roeenl B. Bucx

DoLoBEs & Srxrx Srnrers
Posr OFFTCE Box 5427
CARMEL. c-rr-rFonmtA I 30 2 L- 5427
TELEPIIoNE (431) 624-3491
Fr.csrurr-r (431) 625-0r45
E-Mar r-: hbm@camrellaw.com

February 9,2016

Donald Freeman, CitY AttomeY
P.O. Box 805
Carmel, CA9392l

Re: Carmel LibrarY Park Branch

Dear Don:

I,m writing in my capacity as counsel for the Carmel Public Library Foundation, for the

pulpose of continuing u ron .rration which you and I began in early December' I'm copying the
^Carmel 

Library Board of Trustees on this letter, as well as Mayor Jason Burnett, Acting City
Administrator Mike Calhoun, and incoming City Administrator Chip Rehrig, because we are

facing a very serious situation and I beiievethat a successful solution will take the focused

attention of all of these PeoPle.

you,ll remember that I contacted you in early December because of information which
had been received by the CPLF Executive Committee in Novembet 2015 through the project

report presented Uy iitrary consultant Susan Kent. As part of her investigation, Ms. Kent had

been piovided with a copy of the report dated March 14,2013, done by Applied Real Estate

Inspections, the companywhich had been hired to complete a moisture and mold assessment of
the Park Branch at that time.

What was most troubling to the CPLF Executive Committee about the 2013 AREI
assessment report was the fact that AREI had identified mold levels in the basement area which
were significant enough for AREI to recommend that no one enter the basement area without
prrronul protective equipment. AREI further recommended that a company trained and insured
in mold remediation should do the corrective work on the affected areas and that the areas should
be checked again after the remediation. The CPLF Executive Committee was unable to obtain
any confirmation that the remediation had been accomplished, nor that there had been any
foilow-up testing. Because of the potential risk to library patrons and employees, the Committee
was very concerned.

/
6



After meeting with the Executive Committee on December 3,2015, I spoke to you in
person and by phone. After speaking to Mike Calhoun, you assured me that you had been
informed that the remedial work had been performed in March 2013 after the AREI report had
been received. You urged me to contact Mike Calhoun directly, and I did so. In our
conversation, Mike told me that the City of Carmel had sent in a crew to perform the remedial
work in 2013, but he also confirmed that no follow-up testing had been done. Mike told me that
he first leamed of the issue in late November 2015, and that he immediately obtained an
authorization for testing by AREI. In fact, Mike told me that samples were being taken by AREI
that very day. Mike said that he would provide us with a copy of the report and that a program
would be put into place right away to schedule periodic retesting. Mike also offered to set up a
meeting with the CPLF Executive Committee once the AREI report had been received. The
members of the Executive Committee were very relieved to receive this information.

On January 15,20t6, Mike Calhoun met with the CPLF Executive Committee and
provided a copy of the new report, which is dated December 11,2015. At the meeting, Mike said
that it tumed out that the remedial work which we had been told was done by a City crew in 2013
had never actually been done. He said that the Public Works Department had done some work to
remove the mold which was visible, but that the recommendation in the AREI20l3 report that a
company trained and insured in mold remediation should be hired to correct the affected areas
had not been followed, and there had been no subsequent testing or work.

The CPLF Executive Committee was very concemed after the meeting with Mike
Calhoun, so they met directly with Holland Woolley of AREI to review the December 2075
report in detail. Mr. Woolley compared the March 2013 and December 2015 reports and
discussed them with the Executive Committee. Mr. Woolley confirmed that the recommended
2013 remediation had not been done, and he also said that the scope of the work he'd been
contracted to do for the 2015 report was limited. He made it clear that in December 2015 he was
not askedto assess the entire building, and that his inspection consisted of a visual mold
assessment and air sampling (four indoor samples and two outdoor samples) to determine the
success of the mold remediation. He also conducted air samples of the first floor kitchen area
and the Children's Library. Mr. Woolley represented to the Committee that he felt that a
qualified remediation company should do the remediation work rather than having the City crew
attempt it. He also recommended that the contents of the basement should be removed and
disposed of by certified and trained professionals, and he said that additional assessments should
be done at least annually. Mr. Woolley also stated that all remediation work should be
completed before any renovations are undertaken on the first floor of the building and he strongly
recommended that more testing should be done on the main floor. Mr. Woolley was asked to
recommend several companies who are qualified to perform the remediation, and these are the
names and the contact information which he provided: TRUE RESTORATION/HARE
CONSTRUCTION in Pacific Grove, 655-9507; ADVANCED RESTORATION in San Jose,
(408) 298-4391; and CLEAN-TEC in Santa Cru2,457-8666.

I
e



I met with the CPLF Executive Committee yesterday morning, and as a result of that
meeting I was directed to write this letter. The Committee is deeply concerned that the City of
Carmel hasn't taken appropriate action, and I share that concern. The Park Branch is owned by
the City, and the City has the responsibility for ensuring that it is a safe place for the children and

their families who use it every day. It is no exaggeration to say that this is potentially a very
serious public health issue.

We believe that the first thing that must be done is for the City of Carmel to arrange for
AREI to conduct further testing of untested areas in the entire building so that a complete report
can be provided. At the same time, we ask the City to move immediately to select a qualified
company to undertake the remediation work which will be determined to be necessary following
receipt of the complete AREI assessment. The CPLF Board is meeting on February 22,2016; at
that time, the Executive Committee will be updating the Board on the situation in the Park
Branch. We hope that at that time we can advise the Board that further testing has been
performed by Mr. Woolley and that a qualified remediation contractor has been retained by the
City to perform the necessary remediation of this potentially hazardous situation. I urge you to
work with the Mayor, Mike Calhoun, and Chip Rehrig to make certain that this potentially
dangerous situation is addressed immediately. I very much look forward to receiving your
response.

cc: Carmel Library Board of Trustees
Mayor Jason Burnett
Interim City Administrator Michael Calhoun
City Administrator Chip Rehrig

Dfltr.2-9-16

t3I

Very truly yours,

Cfuis Campbell



HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Staff RePort

February 24,2016
To:

From:

Subject:

Harris-on nnemorial Library Board of Trustees

Janet Bombard, LibrarY Director

Receive report regarding a request from the Sunset Cultural and Community

Center Board to fund $ig,gZS in additional costs to expand the Master Plan

'"opuofworktoincludethelibraryandprovidedirection
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
During a facilities strategic planning meeting with Library consultant susan Kent last october'
councirmember Tarmag"e oiought ip the id6a of buirding a new library on the sunset center north

parking lot. Given that-the goaro of the sunset center cultural and community center was also

engaged in strategic planning with regard to its facilities and an eventual Master Plan, the timing

seemed right to .on.id"l. thiJalternative in the library facilities planning that was already undenruay'

The Monterey Museum of Art has also expressed interest in building a new museum on the north lot'

The Sunset Center Board is open to .on.iO"ring both entities - the library and the museum - and has

asked the consulting fii* that'is facilitating the iraster plan to amend the plan to include them'

The consulting firm, Anderson Brule Architects, lnc., has indicated that to do so will necessitate an

additional 936,750 in fees. The Sunset Center Board is asking the library and the museum to split the

cost of the fees, and has indicated that should either entity choose not to do so, the Sunset Center

Board will proceed with the Master plan without that entity being included in further planning'

The library's cost to proceed with the Sunset Center Master Plan is $18,325'

The carmel public Library Foundation recently engaged Group4 Architects to look at the existing

library facilities and make recommendations ai to ho* the library can move fonuard with renovating

and upgrading the buildings. Group4 also agreed to include the possibility of a new building on the

Sunset-Center lot as part of the scope of work'

The Carmel public Library Foundation will be considering Sunset Center's request at its Board

meeting on Monday, February 22. carmel public Library Foundation staff and/or library staff will

report at the February 24th Library Board meeting on the CPLF Board's decision as to whether CPLF is

willing to fund the additional costs'

lf the CpLF Board declines to pay the costs, the Library Board of Trustees could, if it so wishes,

choose to appropriate funds from reserves to pay the costs. lf the Board decides it would like to

engage in a discussion as to whether or not to pay the costs, it may want to consider the following
points:. The library already occupies two buildings that can be renovated to provide the desired

serviceso lmplementation of the proposed Sunset Center Master Plan is very likely far off in the future
o There are no City funds available to pay the costs of building a new library building
o lf neither CpLF nor the Library Board chooses to pay the costs of funding the study, the agreed

upon scope of work to be performed by G4 can likely be amended.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: Additional Services Authorization, Anderson Brule Architects

7



,A:-, A c f.i rL{ trpl-

,\\DERSON BRli LE 4,RCHITECTS

Additional Services Authorization

January 29,2016

Ms. Kathy Bang, Board Chair, Board of Trustees
Sunset Communiry and Cultural Center
San Carlos Street / 9'r'Avenue
P.O. Box 1950
Carnrel-By-The-Sea, C A 9392 |

Re: Proposal for Additional Professional Services
Sunset Center Master Plan
CarmelPublicLibraryandMontereyMuseumProgramDevelopment

Dear Kathy:

Anderson Brule Architects. Inc. (ABA) is pleased to submit this proposal for additional professional

services for the Sunset communify and cultural center Master Plan.

Context
The Sunset Community and Culturai Center (SCCC) has contracted with ABA to develop a Master Plan for

the sccc sire. This project is being funded and led jointly by the SCCC and the city of carmel-by-the-

Sea. The estimated costi and appro-ved scope of work for f,rxed fee contract was based on all program

development and representation tccurring through the SCCC and the City' The project Core Team has

determined that the Master Plan scope should now include potential programs for the Monterey Museum

and the Carmel Public Library.

Scope ol'Addilional Services
As shown in the attached-project Process Map, to accommodate the Monterey Museum and Carmel Public

Library program studies, ABA will:
. Work by email and telephone with Museum and Library representatives to define and refine their

respective program requirements and sharing opportunities (3'2)'
. Organize and support an additional Core Team meeting with Library and Museum representation

(3 3)
r Organize and support an additional project Core Team Meeting (3.4).
. Support Master PIun p.og..rr reviews by the Museum and Library Boards in addition to those

p..ulousty planned Uy ttre SCCC Board and the Carmel City Planning Commission and Council
(-1.6 and 4.10).

Deliverables
agA *ill r,,pport the Museum and Library in the development of program information that can be used in

the Master pian Design Workshop. ABA will include Museum and Library representatives inone (1) Core

Team meeting and inlhe planned Design Workshop. ABA will prepare and present two (2) Master Plan

Pro-iect updates each to the Boards of the Museum and Library'

Page 1 of 3

p:\iunset-center- 1 5 080 1\master plan\docs\contract\client\ I 60 I 29
asa\1 60 128-additionai services authorization proposal.docx

Form Rev. 09.27.00

Strategies, Architecture & lnteriors

lnc. 325 South First Street,4th Floor San Jose, California 95113
Tel: 408 298 1885 Fax: 408 298 1887

a
t

Anderson Bru16 Architects



ffi.-,MuseunrandLibraryprogramdevelopmentwi1lbetodesignanddistributee1ectronicaIlya
program information ,rr".i, to i.rr*'indlvidual progiam information via one (1) follow-up telephone call

with each, and to further ref,rne program, una ,nlri,ig opporhrnities via one (1) joint phone call involving

both the Museum and the Library'

Schedule
Additional programming will begin upon approval of this agreement' ABA estimates that' based on the

client,s availability to sihedule anO attena meetings, the prJgram development and Core Team meetings

will require about 6 weeks of work'

Fee Proposal
These additional services will be provided fbr a fixed fee of $35,000. Reimbursable expenses for travel and

incidental expenses are estimated at $1,750 and will be billed per the terms and conditions of the Sunset

Center Master Plan base contract.

This Agreement between Anderson Brule Architects, Inc. and the Sunset Community and Cultural Center

is evidenced by the authorizing signatures below'

Sincerely,
Anderson Brule Architects

David O'Brien
Director

cc: christine sandin, Executive Director, Sunset community and cultural center
Robert Mullane, Public Works Director, Carmel-by-the-Sea

ATTACHMENT: Sunset Center Master Plan Process Map

Pamela Anderson Brule, FAIA
Principal
California License : C23 I 22

Kathy Bang
Board Chair, Board of Trustees
Sunset Communi[z and Cultural Center

t0

Date Date



HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Staff Report

24,2016
ftarrison frlemorial Library Board of TrusteesTo:

From:

Subject:

Janet Bombard, Library Director

Discuss the possibility of requesting additional open hours for the library and

provide direction regarding fonruarding the request to the City Council for
consideration as part of th! Fiscal Year 2016/17 budget deliberations

SUMMARY:
At the January 2016 meeting, the Trustees directed to staff to continue the discussion of additional

open hours to ttre February meeting and prepare a recommendation on alternative schedules and

hours.

ln order to better inform the process, library staff in both buildings were directed to count numbers of
peopte using the library during speciiic Otoit<s of time throughout the day- A short survey for patrons

regarding increased open hours was also put at the Main tiUrary circulation and reference desks, and

tfr6 youtfr Services desk at the Park Branch (see Attachment for survey examples).

As a follow-up to a question asked at the January meeting, department supervisors were also asked to

estimate the overall 'percentage of tourists who use/visit the library (25o/o, although the number may be

a little higher for the reference department).

Door counts and statistics from the past month show that the majority of patrons came to the Main
Library in the afternoon, between the hours of 1:00 and 5:00 every day (note: on Mondays and
Saturdays the library is only open during those hours). The reference desk's busiest times alternated
between mornings and afternoons; howlver, afternoon use of the reference desk was somewhat
greater overall. filitn tne exception of wednesday mornings, when the weekly storytime program takes

f,;r.", the youth Services department's busiest time was also afternoons between 1:00 and 5:00' ln
'both buildings, the time with ihe fewest number of patrons using the library was between 7:00 and
8:00 p.m. Wf ife these statistics were gathered over the course of only one month, library staff
supervisors are of the opinion that they reflect typical usage patterns.

The surveys were gathered over the course of 3 lzweeks, and were completed by 117 Main Library
patrons, ahOt O youtfr Services department patrons. Results of the Main Library survey were as
follows:

o 62 votes for the library being open Monday mornings
. 53 votes the library opening Tuesday mornings at 10 a.m. instead of 11 a.m.
e 54 votes for the library opening Wednesday mornings at 10 a.m. instead of 11 a.m.
o 55 votes for the library being open Saturday mornings
. 72 votes for the library being open Sunday afternoons

Notes on open times in the "Other" section of the survey included the following:
. Same time every day
o Thursday and Friday till 8 p.m.
. Monday evening till 6, Thursday till 8
. Open every day at 9 a.m.
. More evenings and staff
o 9-Severydayo 9-9 Mondaythrough Sunday

i{



. Same hours every daY

. Saturday a.m' - too many tourists in the p'm'
o 24 hours / movies, book reviews, tea time

Themajorityofpatronsvotedforincreasedopenhoursformorethanoneday.Forexamp|e,27
people voted tor SuniaY ,ft"rnoon onfY, irt-aO people asked for Sunday afternoon in addition to other

open times.

Results of the Youth services department surveys were as follows:
o 8 votes for the department being open Monday mornings
.SvotesforthedepartmentbeingopenTuesdaymornings
. 8 votes for the department being open Saturday mornings
o 4 votes for SundaY afternoons

one respondent wrote "no" next to allthe suggested mornings and afternoons on the survey' but

indicated that he/she would like the youth siirices departm-ent to be open weekday afternoons and

evenings. As with the Main Library .r*lv iesurts, the majority of respondents voted for increased

open hours on more than one daY.

It is clear that our ribrary patrons would like to see an overall increase in open hours. The notes

written in the ,,other,, section also make it clear that patrons would like to see more consistency during

the week with respect to the times the library is open. lt is staff opinion, however, that adding open

hours on sundays is not warranted by the (aomitieoty short duration) survey results. Granted, sunday

afternoons at the wtain l-iOrary received the most votes, but, taking everything into account, the

differences in the numbers are not that great'

At a recent city staff budget meeting, city finance staff indicated that the city's revenues, while still up

overall, have been decreasing and that tiend is expected to continue. The city council, therefore, is

likely to take a hard look at any requests for increased staffing and the resultant increased costs'

lf the Library Board were to request opening the library on sundays, it would necessitate adding new

staff. The first-year costs to the City would be:

Reference Librarian, step one @ 4 5 hours per week ($24.85/hour): $6,292 per year
Library Assistant, step one @ Snours per week ($-2_3- 1S/hour): q6,919 per year
Library Assistant, step one @ + nours per week: ($23.1S/hour): $4,816 per year

Total: $17,127 per year

The current open hours at each library are as follows:

MAIN (42 hours Per week)
Monday TuesdaY
1-5 11-8
BRANCH (36 hours Per week)
Monday TuesdaY WednesdaY

Wednesday ThursdaY FridaY
11 -8 10-6 10-6

1-5 1-8
Thursday FridaY
10-5 10-5

Saturday
1-5

Saturday
1-510-5

Staff is proposing the following alternative:
1. Remain closed on SundaYs
2. C1ose the Main Library at 7 p.m. instead of 8 p.m. on Tuesday & Wednesday, and open at 10

a.m. instead of 1 1a.m. those two days.

i)



close the youth services department at 7 p.m. insteed of ,8 
p.m. on Tuesday.

OF; tne youttr Services department at 10 a'm' on Tuesday'

The Main Library schedule would then look like this (44 hours per week):

MondayTuesdayWednesdayThursdayFridaySaturday
1 -5 1O-7 1O-7 1O-7 1O-7 1 -5

The youth services Department schedule would look like this (38 hours per week):

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1-5 1O-7 1O-5 10-5 10-5

The schedules above would add only 4 open hours a week more, but opening times would be more

consistent and therefore easier for the proti" to remember. Furthermore, this could be accomplished

for far less money than opening Sunday afternoons'

The library currently has three parttime library assistants who work 12 hours, 15 hours' and 17 hours

a week respectively (17 hours per week is the maximum that parttime-sfaff are allowed to work)' The

Library also has three parttime Reference Librarians, two who work 17 hours a week' and one who

works eight hours per week. The schedules above could be accomplished by asking the city council

to increase existing parttime library assistant staff hours by two to four hours a week (staff would need

to do an in-depth anlfysii of schediles to determine the exact number), and the 8 hour per week

reference librarian's hours by two hours per week'

Costs for this scenario would be as follows:
Reference Librarian, step 5* @ 2 extra hours per week ($32'69/hour): $3'400- per year

Library Assistant, step one 6-+ frours per week. ($23.1S/hour): $4,816 per year

Total: $8,216 Per Year

*The Library's 8 hour per week Reference Librarian is at Step 5 (top step)'

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: Survey

3.
4.

SaturdaY
1-5

\j



ATTACHMENT A

LIBRARY HOURS SURVEY - MAIN LIBRARY

rf the ribrary were abre to open more hours per week, which of the foilowing would be most convenient

for you:

Monday mornings

Tuesday at 10:00 (instead of 1L:00)-
WednesdaY at 10:00-
Saturday mornings

Sunday afternoons

Other

LIBRARY HOURS SURVEY - YOUTH SERVICES

lf the library were able to open more hours per week, which of the following would be most convenient

for you:

Monday mornings

Tuesday mornings

Saturday mornings

Sunday afternoons

Other

Irf



---"M

ffi cARMEL::,"j1:s,T.Bf+H,FouNDA'oN ffffiffi**- 
16se

CARMELPLJBUC (ear) sz+.zsri--LDX.ARYFoTJNDATToN 11t5115 _ 
Ho

Pr. JTHE - E

dioei oi- Harrison Memorial Library dr * *
$ **7z,77s.oo 

fSelentV-]wo Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy-Five and 00/10B'***t#**H******-***-*****************************, ^^ E
ESeventylTwo Thousand Sgven Hundrgd Seventy-Five and 00/100:rr**r********************************************r. . - . ir ,: .i - - I& # #ru # #h ***' 

DoLLARS ;: E3tHHrorid Library ryw#ffi - ,,/ i;""#;.;U,n,, 
ffiE ""r' , **

:

CARMEL PUBLIC LIBRARY FOUNDATION

Harrison Memorial Library
11tst15

1659

72,775.00

72,775.00
SB Checking Account 2nd Quarter Distribution from CpLF

\'7



HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Staff Report

February 24,2016
ffiry Board of rrusteesTo:

From: Janet Bombard, Library Director

subject: Approve and lgcept private donation to the Harrison Memorial Library in the

amount of $500
SUMMARY:
The library has received a private donation of $500'

per the Board of rrustees financial policy all donations and gifts with a value in excess of $500 must

be approved and accepted by the board'

lr



11428g121()4li84
0057018673

2/5

$,5oo-oo
6r trl

\1



HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Staff Report

February 24,2016
#rrison tvlemonal Library Board of TrusteesTo:

From:

Subject:

Janet Bombard, LibrarY Director

Authorize library staff to enter into a contract with califa to connect the library to

the CalRen/Cenic high speed broadband network

SUMMARY:
At the January 27 , 2016 meeting the Library Board of rrustees authorized staff to contract for a 100

Mbps broadband connection to CalRen/Cenic'

The next step of the process is to enter into a contractual agreement with califa Group - a not for profit

membership cooperative that engages in netotiations for discounted services for california libraries -

whereby califa wiil obtain one or more data circuits to connect the library to the CENIC high speed

broadband network (see Attachment).

staff is requesting authorization from the Library Board of rrustees to enter into the agreement and

sign the contract.

ATTACHMENT:
Attachment 1: proposed agreement between Harrison Memorial Library and Califa for the provision,

installation and maintenance of advanced network (data) services

\8



'-1 T7 fr ctlf'|€-t',T I

AGREEMENT BETWEEN HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY AND
CALIFA

FOR THE PROVISION, INSTALLATION AND MAII\TENANCE OF
ADVANCBD NETWORK (DATA) SERVICES

This Agreement, hereinafter referred to as "Agreement", is entered into as of DDDD, 2015
by and-between Califa Group, a California public benefit corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Califa"
and the Harrison Memorial Library hereinafter referred to as "Library". Califa and Library are

sometimes referred to in this Agreement individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties". All written
communications between the parties shall be addressed as follows unless and until amended in writing
by the respective party.

Harrison Memorial Library
Janet Bombard
Library Director
Ocean Ave & Lincoln St
Carmel-By-The-Sea, C A 93921

Califa
Susan H. Hildreth
Executive Director
24llFlores Street
San Mateo, CA94403

WITNESS THAT

WHEREAS, Califa, on behalf of the California State Library, has contracted with CENIC to
provide high speed networking to libraries in California; and

WHEREAS, Library desires to contract with Califa to obtain one or more data circuits to
connect Llbrary to the CENIC high speed broadband f,tber network, CalREN, and, if specified in
appendix #1, attached, to connect Library to other library sites as identified in said appendix for
the purpose of connecting to CalREN.

NOW THEREFORE, Library and Califa enter into this Agreement:

1. Relationship between the Parties

It is the purpose of this Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions applicable to the provision
of communications and related network services to Library.

2. Services to be Provided
The primary communications infrastructure provided by CENIC is the Califomia Research and
Education Network ("CalREN"). Among the services that CENIC will provide to Libraries

\q

Master Agreement Page 1 of8



3.

are use of carREN and contracting for and provision of data circuits supplied by network service

providers.

califa, on behalf of Library, will contract with CENIC for such data circuits. specific circuits and

their costs are incruded in the appendix attached. carifa wil assure that cENIC notifies the Library

of installation requirements urd rr...rrury *ui"t""ance instructions' Neither CENIC nor Califa

shall be responsible for operating or maintaining software, equipment or cabling that connects

equipment not providld Uv cgXjC for the ,..r[., unless spicifically agreed to in writing by

CE,NIC.

Term and Termination of this Agreement
(a) TERM OF I.HIS AGREEMENT. 

-itir 
Agreement shall be in effect from DDDD through

June 30, 2lll.This agreement will autom-atically renew unless one party notifies the other at

least 60 days in advance of June 30,2017 and each June 30 of each renewal period'

(b) TERMINATION. Termination prior to the end date stated above shall result in Library

having to pay any circuit telecommunications carrier termination charges resulting from early

termination of the Service'
(c) Library may terminate this agreement if non-recurring, one-time costs for all circuits

included in appendix 1 are increased by the telecommunications carrier from the amount

shown in upp.rai, 1. See footnote for non-recurring charges in appendix 1 for more

information.

Payment
Payment for services shall be due within thirty (30) days of receipt of a Califa invoice reflecting

provision of the services for which the invoice is sent; or as otherwise agreed to by Library and

Califa. Except for non-recurring costs, if any, costs in Appendix I shall only begin upon installation

of circuit(s). Library will put forth reasonable efforts to make payments within thirty (30) days after

receipt of invoice.

4.

5. Miscellaneous

(a)

(b)

CONDITIONS OF USE. Library agrees to conform to the CENIC Appropriate use Policy

locatedathttphttp://www."eric.t.g7p:2Osllandtoanyspecificconditionsofuseimposed
by subcontractors providing communications services to CENIC as may be in force at the

time such services are madi available pel an Addendum to this Agreement' If such

conditions of use are modified and Library believes it can no longer conform to their

requirements, Library shall have one hunired eighty (180) days to terminate.the affected

service without p.nuity. If Library does not elect to terminate the service, Library must

conform to the rerised conditions of use or be subject to termination of the service by

CENIC.
CONFLICTING CLAUSES. If any clause in this Master Agreement is in conflict with a

clause in an Addendum to this Agreement, the language in the Addendum shall take

precedence but only for the service defined in that Addendum.

Master Agreement
Page 2 ofB



6.

(c) FORCE, MAJEURE. Neither party will be responsible for performance of its obligations
hereunder where delayed or hindeied by war, riots, embargoes, strikes involving third parties,

acts of Local Access Providers or of itsvendors, or suppliers, acts of unrelated third parties,

accidents, cable cuts, act(s) ofGod or any other event beyond its reasonable control'
(d) GOVERNING LAW. The laws of the State of California shall govem this Agreement.

i"i NON LIBRARy USES: Library understands that this agreement covers only library use of
CaIREN and of circuits provided hereunder and Library agrees that no other uses will be

made of the services provided herein.

Entire Agreement
This Agr&ment and any Addenda contemporaneously or subsequently executed by the parties

constitute the entire Agieement between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement

and supersede all prior-written or oral agreements with respect to such. This Agreement may not be

modifred orally, urrd.ro modification shalt be binding unless in writing and signed by authorized
representatives of both Parties.

General Provisions
7.1 Nondiscrimination:

(a) During the performance of this Contract, Califa and its subcontractors shall not deny
the Contract's benefits to any person on the basis of religion, color, ethnic group
identification, sex, age, physical or mental disability, nor shall they discriminate
unlawfully against any employee or applicant for employment because of race,
religion, ioloi, national o.igir, ancestry, physical handicap, mental disability, medical
.orrditio.r, marital status, age (over 40) or sex. Califa shall insure that the evaluation
and treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free of such
discrimination.

It is expressly agreed and understood by the parties hereto that if any provision of this
Agreement ii treta to be or invalid under any applicable statute or rule of law, it is deemed
to that extent to be omitted. However, the balance of the Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

Rights and Remedies: The rights and remedies of Library provided herein shall not be

exilusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law.

8. Indemnification. Library shall indemnify Califa, its trustees, officers, agents and employees
harmless from and against any and allliability, loss, expenses (including reasonable attomeys'
fees), or claims for injury or damages arising out of the perfotmance of this Agreement, but only in
proportion to and to the extent such liability, loss, expense, attomeys' fees, or claims for injury or
d*ug"r are caused by or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Library its
officers, agents, or employees.

7.

7.2

7.3

Master Agreement

cr
Page 3 of8



Califa shall indemnify Library, its trustees, officers, agents and employees harmless from and

against any and all liability, loss, expenses (including reasonable attomeys' fees), or claims for
in;ury o. du-ug", arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only in proportion to and to
the extent suchiiability,loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury or damages are caused

by or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Califa, its officers, agents, or
employees.

9. Dispute Resolution, All disputes between the parties hereto with respect to their rights and duties
hereinder, excepting only indemnity claims, shall be resolved through binding arbitration pursuant
to Code of Civil proiedure Section 1280, with the non-prevailing party responsible for the arbitrutors'
fee but in all other respects with each side bearing its own costs and attorneysfees.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
respective duly authorized representatives.

For Library for Califa

Signature Signature

Susan H. Hildreth
Name

Executive Director
Title

Date

Name

Title

Date

Master Agreement

a7

Page 4 of8



Appendix #1
Provision, Installation and Maintenance
Of Advanced Network (Data) Services:

Reimbursement of Circuit Costs

This Appendix lists the circuits contracted for by CENIC on behalf of Califa and the Library for
.o*".iirg CENIC's fiber optic backbone to Library and for library connections that are not

direct connections to CENIi's fiber optic backbone, e.g. direct connections between libraries.
Library understands that CENIC will bill Culifu, and Califa will bill Library, for actual costs of
circuits charged by network service providers, including taxes and surcharges and without
markup. Prior to approval of CENIC's Library consortium E-rate application by the FCC's E-
rate contractor, not all applicable E-rate and CTF discounts will be reflected on invoices. After
the E-rate application f* uny given year is approved, the network service provider will
coordinate with CENIC to provide appropriate credits and such credits will be passed from
CENIC to Califa and from Califa to the Library. Such credits are typically issued sometime
during the fiscal year after the year in which the circuits are installed and services are first
proviled. In subsequent years, credits continue to be issued in the fiscal year after the year for
which services have been provided. Library further understands that the exact discounted cost of
circuits will not be knowruntil after the E-rate consortium application is approved. The actual
start date of the service, and therefore of circuit costs, will be dependent on coordination among
CENIC, the Library and the network service provider. Any one time (Non-recurring or NRC)
costs included below are typically invoiced by carriers prior to circuit installation and will be

invoiced to Library upon receipt of invoice to GENIC from carrier.

The circuit being provided by the network service provider is a switched "cloud" circuit, with two billed
elements. or links.

Master Agreement

a\ ..1&)

Page 5 of8



Harrison Memorial Public Library

AT&T (5 year term)

100M to CaIREN

Summary Totals

Pre Discount Costs
(not including

Taxes &
Surcharges)

Estimated Net
Costs, after
discou nts

applied (not
including Taxes
& Surcharges)

NRCX Monthly NRC* Monthly

S- s 731.00 S- s 219.30

Notel: Design is for a

Department (Harrison
Hub site.

100Mbps circuit from Police
Memorial Public Library)to a CaIREN

10OM Circuit to CaIREN

Connection to HUB DiscYo Pre Discount Costs

Estimated Net
Costs, after

d iscounts
applied

E-rate Discount for Harrison Memorial Public***: o.4
CTF Discount**: 0.5

Connection to CaIREN Hub at Police Department (HMPL) NRC* Monthly NRC* Monthly
Link 1: 100M to CaIREN Hub S. s 731.00 S- s 21e.30

Taxes & Surcharges on links Vories

Library Equipment

Harrison Memorial Public is

responsible to provide a router with
a 100 Mbps interface and at least
one LAN interface. This router
should support BGP and NAT. An
upgraded Firewall appliance maY
also be needed to support 100
Mbps data streams.

Master Agreement

I .11c(

Page 6 of8



Note 1: These numbers do not include early termination
fees that might be required from current provider(s), nor
equipment the library may need to purchase to support
these circuits, nor Taxes & Surcharges on the circuits'
Note 2: E-rate and CTF discounts are dependent upon the
continued funding of these programs. CENIC/Califa cannot
gaurantee the E-rate and CTF discounts, and these
discounts are subject to change.

Definitions
*NRC - Non-Recurring Charges. These costs could be
subject to change should a telecommunications provider
determine during circuit engineering prior to circuit
installation that additional costs are required. Should this
occur, the library may cancel the circuit with NRC, or if all
circuits are to be charged additional costs as compared to
those in this agreement library may cancel this entire
agreement or ask whether another circuit(s) with lower
NRC but potentially higher on going monthly costs is (are)

available.
**CTF discount - percent discount of amount after E rate
discount is applied.
*x,t'E-rate discount: percent discount indicated is an
estimate based on data available at the time the quote was
generated. Actual discount percentage will be identified by
the E rate authorities at a later point.

Master Agreement

1(c

Page 7 of8



Master Asreement

,-x_ i

Page B of8



o
=C
(U

ro
-f--
N\r

o)
ro-\t

$l-ro
t)t
l-

t
+!)
\
o

N sf cf)
o)N

o
(f) @

o)
e1)(0

oF
to(!J

of-
tr)-
ON

N$
@^
N

sf
cf)
C\l

(o
Ns^
Nc!

(\ll\oq
(0
t{,

of-o-
@

sNo-
co

@ oo-
cf)

(0Fo-
(o(\l

E'sfor
$tct

Frfu)+

$
o^
O)c)

@N
6i

CO
@N oq

s
-

O)l- toNN
|r)
cf)

CO(o (t)
-|l)

ol-
.93

co$-
l-

sN$-o
O)
rr)
o) f-f--

l-

roo
rrr-
(0

f-f-o)
co

s
@o^
N

$oN
Cq
cf)o-
N

€(t)ag)
F

(ao
\rI)(o

(Y)(n
\ro

:\
sf
F
Flr)

.c
co
=o(5
J

lr)
q
N

$
co^

@f- of-(o-
N

toq
(o

o
CO\r

@
N

o
@
cf) (a

c.i

l(,
o?.€

$t
(Y)€

@(ao

oo
N"
r)

(Y)
1r)
@-

(o
co

f- (,r lC)(o- oq
-(9

s@oetf)^ o),
rC0

f- O) f-N
(o N -@

!

o
=o
F

o)
O)
co-
N

ol-
@^

\t|r) coo
oo-
N

e0No^
l"-

f-l-
n"

N
co
ca

oN O)
cf)

oN(\l
N

(o
l}ct
o,

@
@
N"
Lo

oN
@-

sco
NN l- (o s o)

F

o
an
as

o
o
at)
G

oo
oL
ctF

(o
c!
ro

I

tI
lt-

I

o)o{
(\t
C\

I

@\o6l
I

o)q
@
FI

(\l
e?
(.o
ol

I

@q
-C,)I

\(\l
Fq
stNI

6
a?
(o
NI

(t)qoNI

oa
F-N

(oq
@

I

i-n(o
-I

o\oro
I

sf
o?
lo
-I

qo
F

I

rO

€c
ool

I
oo6
CI
(u
(ga
o
.E
o-

O)
\lo

I

o\o(v)
I

-e!
(v)(\

I

i-q
(.o

htI6
I

€\€
-I

zo
t-
J:loil.
6

o
o
o
(Eo
G
F
o
(!
oL
6
=E

Co
.9

co
.9
LL

I
Coz

a
o)
C
N
Go
(E

o
o)E

.9E
J

J
FoFzot-
Jfo
E,6
FJ3o

@

o
o
(E
@

(Et-F
o
(E

o
o
o
o
a

-o
.o
LL

co
.o
LL

I-oz

ao-.N
(Eo(6

ooE

.9o
=

J
FoFzo
F
Jfo*.
5
luJ
=,IJJ

=-,

J
FoFzo
F
J
ou
5

tt
oo3c'ou
oto
tho
x.

tr
oo
Eo5
troI-
(E
o-

o
.Cs
J
m

I

o)
!-

=Jm
oc
N
m
Lt-
(E
o-

Lo
,aE
6ooJ

ooo
.ho(J'=
Loa
t-

#fo

J
FoF
tso
zotF
o.

zo
F
g.
Fo
o
lUt.zott-
o-

a
cop
aog.
(E
oa

Io-
t

-o6
E
(E
O

U)
Cop
a
o)t
=o
oLo
Co

a
cop
aot
+t
O
q)
o
Co

cit-oo
.g
C:)

U):o
L(u
O
LoEa

a
o
=o
Lom
0)
-Cl#lo

J
FoFzIF
tr.t-
9,o
IruIt

(o
oN
-(a

Ft.o
o-
UJt
J
J.Fzo
=U' ;.24st
t.o
-J



c)
cf)

(oo
@

oo)
LO

o o oo @s
N

o
coo-

f-
\t

cf)
@c\l
@

€ro
€̂
F

o
o(!J

o)No-
N

COo
@
tt(!,
\N(\t

No
co^o

$N(o-
(o
$
-oo^
N

N
(f)

\(n
r{,

oF
,9
t-

ro
cf)s^
@

(o
$N

F
@
@-orF

f-f-
c\t
@

@
n^(o
cf)

COo
o.i

(0
o,
(o
lf

@N
(osN

cf)
ooN

O o o (o
tr)o-
r

$sf$ to (o
cf)c\l
f-

F-dt
\o,

o
={t
{EJ

@
co-
N

CO
r-\lq
$t

O
@o)

N
cr)o-
ro

()
N

(r)(0ol
(0

<-
ca

@
cf)
o o O $N

@ro NN CA(oo- G'co-
rF

o
=,9
t-

lr)
coN.
N

f-
co

6t
F-6l
N

*t
cf)-

N
CO
co-
l()

cf)lr)N
C')6t
o).
(0

s f-
(Y)

s
co

cf)(o
N

o)s cf)
N

N
co
--
F(os-
F

o(rtc
a!

o
o
EE
(E

oo
oo-ot-

(Y)
o?
1r)
I

ono)(0
I

(9
oq
t\
I

@q
o)
I

lo
\
N
I

o)
,fi6l
I

1()
u?

-6lt

r{)

d
I

€n(n(o
I

({)q
FIlo
I o
o
+t

o
o
+t

oqoo
iF
I

st
o?
@I

o)e(0lo
I

(t)
\
(Y)(0
t

c)nol
i

t\nN
I

a
u.
ut

=otil,o
m
trtzo
tr
J3ot
o

lrJ
C)z
uJo
U)
IJIu
IIo
lrJo
J
o-

(Eo
@

Io
.C

I

-olo
Et-(o
O

J
FoFat-z
IJJoa
LI
E,

ao
6
C
Jo
C)

ot-o
co
Lo-o

E
Joo
o
o
co
Eo
(E
Loo.
LooC
:)

aoEo
O
oi{
o
o

J
FoFaFzulo6
IrJ
E.
Izoz

oltl(J
t
IIJa
To
UJt.t-3o

;
G.oF
U'

J
ooJ

Eo
13E
a
Eo
=
(tr

=.9o

E
G)EE
a
Eo
=(s
.9o
o-

oocoE
Co

a
Eo
ooL
o-

aJJ
o
lrJzo
o-
ITJJtuF

Y
U)oo
aoo'=
t-o(/)
-)o

vaoo
t-o
,9,-
ooo

lzoq)o
Co
(tr
Jo.=
O

oJJ
o
UJzo
-o.
IJJJ
UIFJ
t-oF

a
op
ootr

o
(troL
Jo

o
op
oo
E.
I

oz
o
=o

Co
(6
JoL
(J

aLo
=a

--,aoo
c)o
l-oLo
ot

Fto
o-
lUt,isTO!-c!z=g'r
a=2q
tr,
t,tr
=



(U
f
C
(E

oF
o
G,

ltr)s
COs

cf)oro
CO

o
CO(o

f-6o(o
ro
(.o
roro
-

(o
Nf-

@s
O)
c{)

cf)o$
oo
@
cf)(o

1.)(otN
f-$N

o
O)

o

.g

o)f-o
co

@f-
rtr)

(o
|r)
o)

(o
f-f-lr)

o)
@(v)
F

|r)NN cr)
O)

o
cf)N

Nf-Nro
€
rc)(o
N

O)(o roo

,g
o
=o
tttJ

@olr)
LOf- oN NNo)

toNt\
-

f-
cf)

N
cf)r

ro
cf)

O)o)f-
(r)(, $N N

o
=o

sf-rr)
rr)
CON

(o(o @
O)
oo

c)\fo
CA(o
N

f-$ \t
(f)

s(ot\
DoN
F

s
cf)

CO

oat
(E

o
ot
(E

oo
oGoF

sfIo)FI
I

lo
o?tro

I

roc
t I

dt

fit
0q
(o6t

I

(eco)(\I
I

(\ln(0
I

(f)
o?
6tsfI

t\ni\
(oq
€({)

I

@
u?

c)
a

i-q
(o

(t,
UJ()
t.
TUa
IJJiolz

lu.tIt
lu.rlu-luItr

iioL.o
=o

o
o
IDo
o
oo
ol-o
ot

-Yooo
oo
Co
otFot

lzaoo
aoo
=Loa
-C
Jo

l<aoo
-o
,9I
6oo

ldlz
leIF
IU'
IuJl=
lo
I llllo-lz

TIH
?IH
h luJ.=lE
(Ul r

al<LIF
c.:lolI-

EoLo
=o

o
o
oo
o
Co
(!

IE
lo
Itr

-lgl=*6l tolo
8lEIr
orl I1.9ol(l)l(,

gt=tE

Yaq)o
co
(s
)ol-o

azo
Fa[l
=ozo
tr

=E,otrz
J
Fol-

2
oJ
tr
N.
dt
J
E.ulF
=

o
0)
L(s
L

_o

=l-o
Po
o
J
o
mo

o
o)
L
(E
l-
-o
=Lo
o
EoL

-J
C)

mo

@
ON
co

FuoG
UJt.
J
IFzo
=U'E2Ss
E,

to
=



c/)
r
o CO

o)o O O)o

Os o Os

c)
cv)
o Cf)

cf)

o)oo
cl,otc,
ct)
0.)q
(Y)
I

-c;

olt

o)OO
cr)N
@
O)
coq
cf)
t

o
ts
9,

oa
Jo

X
a
=.a
c
o)
0)F

N
C,
=a
a
=oLE
E
O

IJJoz
oz
IJFF
t!)z
UJtoJ
o
J

oF

UJoz
oz
UJFF
z
UJ
IIJF
J
FoF

uloz
oz
IJJFF
J
F,ot-

(0
J
C
(o

clF
o(!
J

(\
(o

O)
lo^
O
co

@c)\
N

o$f--
r

NN
(v)
fi)

(D
(.o
to

(a
l4)
co

$tN
ct)

O)$
CO lo,

(o o
@

lo
N
o
i-

o o

oF
.9sF

6r(ot
LOc)\NN

NO
cf)-
N

loO
s.
-

NN
(Y)
a1l

cl)o)ro
c)ro
c)

(os
O)

(o
Nl-

NNq
CO No)

ro $lI\N
$ (D

c{)

o
=or!
-l

(f)
O)(o

rJ)
rJ)
O)-
N

o(o
(Y)

N
@

N .E

q
ro (0 o

@
LO
co

ro
N
$@r

o)o)
(Y'i,

* o c,

o
=.9
!
L

o(o
f.-

N
cf)(o-
cr)

o)t-
CE

NoN
N z
=q

s tll o$ $
LO
$
O)r

cr)
@

l\Nf9
N NN

O o

oc,
IE

o
oo,
(E

ooLoL
cl

asfNI
6q
ro(\t
I

N
o?
ro
I

l{)
e!
o)
I

oqo
oqo
oqo

Ne!
st
oqo
oq
N

(o
oq
(ts(o

oco
o
u?]\o

oqotf
I

N
u?
I\

o
zo:lt

tr

=oft

F
Fo

ot.
UJoIzotl-o
IJJJul

a;o
=o
e
Eooi
G
-o

=I

e
.cl
o.

(E

oF
o
'6

o
(Eoa
o
o
oo
ltJ

o,of
iI
=Ell
(L

oo
CD(!
o

o
o,(!
o.lro
B
J
=
o
oof

(Eo
0)
o-
Eo
=.9
o
o)
E)
(E
o.
o
Lo.o

z

=.9,
o
o-
Eo
=.g
U'o
U'
(E
o-
o
Lo.o
E
z

=o
o

E'
oJ

o
=too
x.
o-
@
lrJI
E,
IJJo
F
iol>

U)
E
(5
LooL
o_
o
E

=o
U)

a
E
(6
L
o)og
o-
(E'o
oo-a
o)
.EE(5
c)t
g
o
E
E
=a

ii
=
E,(}
ot
E.
J
Fol-

o
E
G
E'o
o-

oo
(E
!,
0)

E
c)
L

E
O

Io
E
zoPa

T
G)

E
!
OI
(5'6
o
CLa
o)
.gE(E
ot
Lo
E
E
f
U)

iioz
oz
tu

Iz
]UtroJ
Io

o

['ioz
oz
IJJ

F

fo
J

oF

uloz
GzulFF
=t
(9o
E,a
a

F
CIF

oo
ot
ul
N
I
o)
x.o
IJ.
o
=toot
lo-

IJJoz
oz
IJJt-F

FcF

o
=toot(L
FJfo

EI
C)z
oz
UIFt-
J
Fo

o
=t.oo
x.
o-z
lJJ
UJ

IJToz
oz
UJl-F
J
t-oF

(o
oc!
CO

Ft.o
o-
IJJt.
J
IFzo
=@.2qst.
t.
m
J



g)
ulJF
t-
oF

o
@o)
o(o
f-

f-
1r) N(o

$
CO
c\.1

ooN
C{lo
co"
c{

oo)E

o
=tutot-

o
@o)

(o
O)
O)

O)l- N(o
s
CE
C\I

ooN
o
co

IJ
tuu
3oo
(r,
tuJtF

@(o
N

(oo o to$ No (f)
f- Not-

a
0)
.E
cf)
O)lJ)
@

-o
_!-
o
-o
.g
EE
.C

({)
Or^
lo(0

o
uJg
Joo
(t)

=UJt

(o(o
N

@N O ro$ NO cf)f- sc{f-
O)roo-
1r)

f-N
COoN

(o
@
eo^

t*

oF
N
(-

o
E
,o-
s

oF
oN
.C

o
E
.a
l-

s

lJloz
z
uJFza
=lua
o
F
o

U'
ruo
=t
TUo
J
Iz
J.otuF

6
tUooJ
F
o
U)Yoo
m

tuF
o
ol-ooz
6Jo

o)

==c0
-
(g

-o
=.co

:tr

=.(5
-o
=
C)
CoL
m
-:zL([
o-

ciJ
IIJ

o
=UJF

ciJ
IJJ

a
UIJt-
F
J
FoF

iioz
zluFz
=UJa
a
F
o

.9

.Co
(6
L
cT,
.9
_o
iE
o
oE
(E

U)Co
oo
t-o
O

aoa
G
-o(u
No
Eo
=od

Eo
L
o)
Co
O
o
ooo-ooL
ot
oo
F

o)
.Eo)
-9(!
(tr
O
o
-o(EE(u
od
C)C
E()(!
o

Eoaoo

oo
oLo
o)t

aoo'=
Loa
l-
Jo==E
.9E
J

o
G)E
J
FoF

J
t-ot-

Ft,o
o-
tUtis
ERZ-
9ra=2s
t,
t.o
-J



oF
o(!
J

q
@f-
q
$Nr

q
N
ca

q
f-o
o
N
q
(")tci,

LO
r()

O)
O)sN

@O
o)

(o
O)
o6 O o)(o

c)
co

(o
@O

to
ro\tt

oF
.g
F

oqsNN
oq
o
oq
(o
F

oq
r
O)

oq
N
oq
]\C'f(t

cf)
@

@
O)

to(o
l.c)
co

f-
O)O$
tsf o)

LO
$No)N

t-
CArr)
-(.o
i{.
(Yi,

E
tro
=o(E
J

oqs
CO

oq
o)
oq
N
oq
(o
oqo
oq
F(o

(o o(v)
-

c)tr) c()lo
(o N o

@
(Y)

LOl-
u':,lo$

g
oE
o
t-

oq
cf)
c.)

oqo
oq
N
oq
N

Oo
Ci

(,q
l'-u,

O (Y)
co

aoo)ro
cr)o)ro
o o

O)
co
of.- (o

o
(6
.c(J
og,
(E

o(,
oo-
aF

@rF
1-
@

roq
@
I

oqolo
I

lo
o?
$
I

oqo
fao
c.i
-

ros
@$I

t\c!
C9(o
I

(\lq
6t
ct)
C\

(0
u?
NsfN

oq
ro$I 6
o
+t

e!
(Y)

-I

l{)
U?olo
I

e?
NNI

o
E,)ot
d.
IJJ
UJF2fJo

co
(s
Jo.=
O

Lo
.9-
(5oo

o)o
q)
Lo
o)
x.

aoo
Loa
6
.9c-ooF

ao
,o
Loa
Jo

aJ
FoF

u
=tot
IIJ

o

a
t-o
(tr
L

,9,oq)t
CoL#(s
o-

aPfoYoo
_c()

o
LI()tr3o
U'
uJg,
J
F
oo
u,lll
-Fo

a
folzoo
-CO

aP
=o
-voo
l-o
.9
CoLPo
G)
G)

(tr
o

IJJo3lt-z
to

x
oo
.9oa

;;zog.
F
o-vo
lJl

o
lJ-Jul{,

L
(5
LsJ
C'6

ao
.o
L
o)a
-C#fo
J
FoF

(o
oN
-CA
r-(s
=C
(U

-

Ft,o
o-
IJJ
tr,

J
J.Fzo
=a2g
M,

tr
m
-J



FINANCTAL STATEMENITS

of

HARRTSON MEMORIAL LIBRARY

For the Period Ended October 31,2015



HARRISOI\ MEMORTAL LIBARY
STATE}IENToFASSETS,LIABILITIES,ANDNETASSETS

Octotrer 31, 2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Wells Fargo Checking
Petty Cash Main
Petty Cash Park Branch
LAIF
LAlF-Operating Reserve
LAIF-Bradney
LAIF -Equipment RePl acement
LAIF-Evans Restricted Fund

Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILTTIES AI\D N{ET ASSETS

NET ASSETS
LAlF-Operating Reserve
LAlF-Equipment RePlacement
WF-Designated Gifts

P ermanently Restricted
Unrestricted Net Assets
Net Income / Loss

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AI\D NET ASSETS

t09,012.9'7
260.00
200.00

368,803.93
t7 5,127 .25

46,741.05
100,000.00
226,000.00

1,026,151.20

t,026,151 .20

l7 5,t27 .25
103.379.77

104.80
46,747.05

740,214.49
(39,422.16)

t.026,151 .20

t.026 151.20



ro
o
F
o)t,6a-

B as,l3
O co ! t-''F 8"A l\
= D ln! lc,

I

\o\co oo
c.i +c{ ooco rr)aFil*l*
alasslnEl=el3

I

-tcE ol
= a-ol

<ol
I
I

+ r l-: ,; ,lI
\o .o I r-.\ .o- 11\o 

It

r/) o\
-OO\O+c-- co

u I l;
l-

<.-nqcotrl\O- \o

tll

lal

slu>i

E=lI

.9a
(E
m
a
(Eo
IoP.oets O:':tr6T gE

t.XB.I I+l EOzrc)E ZALLEo tEuJ
= 

rattVa^s o.Eo5oA FO-

=o9(E >aro=E,E
o
o
tr
o
(E+,a

ba.3eao-g='--,'* t f; - E.eE= ,. E;'EFZ b>':-o€o,i,lEL-i .EEEEi !E:!5 5i tiEE*t iE??E €*E _,,E=EIEE;*gE ZEEEE E4Ei 
=EE2i:i3itF EEEE= EE{-!! E5;Erirrir? E=i== E!:: fr]

==' --: = 
j==== =.. = 

.=E 
=5i====== =-=;= :==fi:=-i-<\oFo+?-!aar-lra.oroi ! A$++ - ^r/)rn - coia J33====vE =+++E 

E--E 5i= I z

E=* E = E q E Ee€; 
E



lo
o
N
o
t,)
G
.L

flaas aaa5g $i5EaB! 3g3 
I

cal

Egl F* 
=esia ia?=Aia ileaiI

o ,.1

.=l 5 E 
=+e 

e $E= =e 
gA= 

I-Il 6i ..'I 
I

I

B ssr E = = = == =I I* ' "R: il R = == - r

I

l-ral\o ld\
E tl s
-o elg <l
slCI

I

.9a(!
m
o
(Eo
IoP

rER:C6;:l oqJ cL8t.X6.I l+l EO-o
F{-=

-Lo (EuJ

= 
tsuVa^tr o.:o=6A rO-to9(E >ijto=(EE
o

{-Jco
Eo
(U

a

Q)a? ?l q l,Et'S i '8" +q,E EEE a E E nng ,f€
E E , agE *8.?.E $s;;ip !:z2-; EEc;7i e.eg=? 3,

IgEt BE.iE!i,,Ea.iE5Eti'=E=:= E;

ZitEsis= : iiiE 
= = = 

ss i I E f E i ; gf 
E

=;=REE+i aEFE=a=EgEEEEE=H=EFE
=EEE===============€e€aee€cG\o



lo
o
c)
o
E,l(!
o-

^...:^^^GA:5RSSSRgBtEEEYE"ri';se=*s====f S3.€8C\OCO-Cnoauev'-Y6 5 i6. {- "r -" 6" n "} a 9" c" I S}
rl J' - o.i < c.t t*- e.l trt
:iji/:/iii!' v

t.,l
E q , : ITo @ leroNo\\o \n O\ l-
- \d --i I o.'l-lt

I

I

6ilul (.)El r\cl ^i6l \o
El .o^
-l 6ol +
a0l!t5l
cal

3888888888a84a4'gcsEssEsEsERFEE
-6ii*I"1 5"-"-rr- c1 33ccr
..i'oi Nrr,rr.ia{trtN c! c.l

a.lN
.gq,EtEA,,,'\o6oo(r)l--ooa, r..t o., 0o \O 6cL \o^ o^ q dI

t-tc!rn

..r $ l-: ,= ,l=
= 3 I='d -i 

l=

ln

=13

o$nv1
d ['-

3 
= 

, E l=\o\qlc\
sl ca lO\

l^

lq
-l .ic! oI ,\i

=bnlYc tl s-ttl €

t--
t--

,9,o
(U
c0

o
G'o
Io9-oetu O:-:c6:ll O€J O.gE,x6.ElLi

o-r6E =Eo (Eu
= 

raEY'c o.:o56A aO-

=o9tu >ilIO:ti
o
o
Eo
(g

a

o\ \o o\ o\ ql
o.Fto\&ooo\;,;;.i",od,,ri
=*oni o\\o
^6+0\

tr-
coN

o\o
c.loloAtS

rn

N?
6J€-o .)o<

fr.+Fa"-Er E .- i.ggi o, i ie, EX.= o - 2 a +i Ei f. >Z7 f 
=E 

E i - F
= (, = a () o. E 6 ',-'= 2 a" =u(,:-=3= =i,5 i C=l-i- - "Eg$=iEEi EE= o edE:= Ts;E5EeiE"fr E==a*.t EsEEd=i,E?i;#=6i>

? 
= 

EEglil 
= 

E=======i=======
= i n=t=1= 3 gs=laa=EsEE6*H**B - ===IIE ; EqEEEEEEsssE$, BU
==\o\o€\o€E5e'i: = FEi-\O-€



ro
o
It
0.,
E',
G
o-

flaia3 E3n$Eia la 1e93$aa lE 5il-Et'd e ecrc)3- 13 =e:
:'l 

u=- vvv- 
| I

cal

_l==== EarEEEE ,l= ==aEa=; la AEEI=3aa aI|af,n3R l5 i*B=3='l* 
=Eil d6+ gNgNN!,tl dv+ f:'r+"ir{ l$ 

-rro o' 
I

I sss nEEqEE la aIII:, , ll 
=a:l Haa rii_fi8" ln ilFi.s l* $i1l dN $c 

l= |
I

H=l ;RfrFiEs li ae lXe;El uc.j' q -s' l) - l- ooiEl \ " =+ l- 
\o 'i' 

lcl

.9a
(E
m
a(t,o

IoPrEF
LF=Iti--H
= a9vro.Efi?
O-roE EEo 6uJ

= 
ta=-Vl^F ar .:l6=bA sLtoPtu >i:TO:E,,i
o

o
Eorlr,
(6

a
# i Z = *-eTALEA! efi e 3*H 53 g+ E= -i'*, xA;E oi a
= a*=EE.- a 6f;€$ ao A= i,E ; * ."2=e:i\*;$gg=6* IB r_.

ElgE;llEE t1atil1iia Eii=ei 1ei + -, 1

EaaBEsESEEEEEEE iEEgEEEEEE ;=ii= FL-E



rt
o
to
o
E"(l,
o-

q

flB 
seB 3l3 

ll5l

EPlsieRal$ll

=;| 
-'; 

=1l 
Ixl\OO\OOr r r | | I :

l,a

N?
-o(.)o{

.9,o
(E
m
o
Go
IoS-oets Ul:-:tr6r:i O4J CL8r,f16'Eur

EETo (UuJ

= aPtr or.=o=6O eGto9rE >=-o:U,E
o

rlJ

o
Eo
(E

@
e E*g inE *iit s *?E , E4A'= ;'i E gEEiEE'I
tai,1iii *igE
FE3eEFa= :EEa a5suE55EE 

===E 
f E

'2



o)
E')(0
IL

o.)

c"jo

o)
(.io

5 3 3N33RR*EEE
+ - ccjd@$NNN-co@N do 05+=Ncqo)F-(o<tr

@N

O)

do
q
@
co

gNSgKRgPsE
od rrj ro s si c.i e.t - cci oqY5qqR\e:5

o o e g g g I8 E5tsl q q c
=ooocicjcjdoNN6l
E]<l
(ul
.El
.el
ol

I

t-ols
N

oqo
oo
ci

oqo
oo
c;

o
E

p
(!o

! : : :E c : :::; 'EE E:Ef,ESEES+E *EgI g====*H*usP g3o
I R r 338?8EEEqfi E 3
E $ E ilililil*ililililil E E

:o
ul-F
o
o
lrJ
doo

@(o
ooNN
F. F-oo
oo

(o (o (o (o
ooooNNNNFFFFoooo
oooo

EoJ
1-
06t
llJv
o

(o (o
oo(\IN
t\ F*oo
oo

zoN
=

(o (o
ooNN
F- l-oo
oo

oslroa)(t

-vo
6)

o
)FJ

: ^E iE 6E

:6'
(E
l!I6
?oooo

zoN
E

(0
oct
6(\l
o

:
o,
(ulr
I
q)

?oooo

zoN
E

G'
ool
@ot
o

iE'
G'
lJ-
I6
?oooo

zoN
E

(o
oN
6
C!

o

:o)
(!
IL
I6
?oooo

zoN
=

@
o
N
@
C{

o

E
o

(E

.ct

(SotEP-bdT E-=-EtE=o=cE5go
i- 6)l-F(!E
Iz

o
(go

(o-(r)(r)
oooor)s()r{)

i

@qF--6(,orroo(rr\f
EI:flz

c0d)d)co

$f $s$$
; P = e E P E P E EP E E

oo.
F

=9
@-9No)o



c\r
o,
o,6L

oc!
(f)
coc!
N

oc!
(f)
@c!
N

N@qq(t o)Or@
N

o o N@q .l qq
.: @ o)@ot-

trlN

otr)lr)qqq
t$o-

ni

lr)
o?
!t

O)q
o$-
N

o)roN(r)oac?og\c?N(Or(ONf=O<c,)\to$d+1..-

F
Ll.
I
U'ould

J
o-oo
T,

16 o otONcOO5 q nc?q\e?N I-CO-(oN'6 0 l.-c){(r)$+ (f)*sttN
c.i

(0(oo?q
i- l'..()tr)

qs6N

r)
+
@
N

N $$(f)u., ro()s; + FI-o;o o oo(oNN

NN
r: .:

@@(\tN

<f$(ou?qn
F* F- O)oo(o

-lE]
ol
EI
1l(!Icl.-L
EDI

ol
I

*ltr5LolEI<tEI'6
(L

I

o
E
IEz

(s

-o
Gto(S {-, -'= oeoo:--Ets=9Ecs-)go

6
I

@q
f.--rf)

q
t-
rC)

N.:
@
N

N.:
@
N

; .o ; -CE g, = sl .E-EEEE B E g ee

gH g=HH g9 9==g== s'n +PP
EE EEBB EE EESEEE EE EBH

c)
F
IJJzJ
o
F
odF

Lr.I

to&
TU

o

J
IFo
&.
IIl!
Llla

@(o
ooNN
F 1..-oo
oo

Il(o(ocrl 5 56L r sOl F- l'-loot\
oo

l<
C)o
o

trotm

!oo
o
trJ

dltDF

:
6
tF
J
Fz
UJ-to

(C} (o (0 (o(o
o o o ooN N N NN
= i F trFa a e QQ5 5 5 55

:::
o ri t F-to@ tlr @tQ6 N cz, $v

iz -looo0,8.trqq
!rtr)trJ

=i=1 fl.) = = O = == Otr t0 m F 6 d]d) F

(o (o
oo(\N
l\ F-oo
oo

NO
@oo)6.ro

j
oo
C)

,c
F
trrnco

:

$(0()ol.-F' (o

@(o
ooC\N
F l.-oo
oo

:

od(ooc)o({)

Loo
o
E
o-

iE in

o) (o1() toc) (t(, o)

oo
F

=9
(o
!?N60



g,
(!,
o)(6

TL

oq
otr)

oqoro
oqoro

oqo
(o

oooqcq
oooorf)tr)o

oooNOo
^icidooo (0 (o

oqoo
@

(oo@nqc!o(\No(/)(o
(o@@qaa
@ooOrOO

@
c.{
N
CO

(oa
co

6(o@c!qq
o@@r'* I o,

(oq
@o,

olr)6
ONN
cidc;
OF.F'

roqot..
o
cio

xot
IJJx

F
U)
u!
+J
Y

600r.-oo<cicid(r)OO

ocoo

tl,0\\(lr(o(9 CO

o\
@(o

o
E

E
'a
o

o
E

'6
(L

I

o

(E

l!
Gl to(E {'' -bdI EE _e =btq

=EEE .r- -)oc)qt'E o)l-F(!E'rz

@c\
N(o

(oao(o
(oq
@o,

ro
N
c;
f.-

o\(o(o

:!:ii:!:::::HE g,B 3, ,E'E FE F"a FH Ffi
o)eEo=ogaenn*eE9&

== +s *F sE +a +I iE se
onoooo990990c)oooooooStrO6oo60ooooooEbO:5+66oNosoNoaSSo:-5ndN-oo(oo@+@to;@Jid'<o(o

=?t
lrJoz
E

(0(o
oo6tN
c, c,

oo

N(OF- (O
c)off)o

j
oo
o

JFJ
FF- : ^F@COF

oSN ;{OVoU)

*oo
o

lF

EiEco

l<o
0)

o
JF

trdlco

(oo(o@(.) o(Y' o

Loo
(-)

rF
FtsiEi5

Ito
=szdoIL
=o

Fo
o
=oo

;j
o
(r,

zf
.n
lrJIF

@@
ooNN
C\' N

oo

(o@
ooNN
NN

oo

(o@
oo$lN
(\tN

oo

.9E

G
E

(6
J
trF

&oJ
F
od
e.
UJv
o

(o@
ooNN
(f, (f)

oo

:

C;FO(to(Y' CO

.vo
0)

o
rC

F
EiEm

(o (o-ooNN
clNr
oo

@

@:(.,Y(,

Ioo
o

rF
UF(Dd)

€o(oN(9@oo

(o (o
ooNN
(\l N

-oo

:

t- tri@oc)
F)

Loo
o

L

tsinit

(.o(o
ooNN
NN

oo

:(,-(o(90(v) t

-vo
0)

o
EL

dld)

-i
=zl

o
F

E(o
(o9Foo



tl
(,
o)(u
o-

q
ro

;o,tr)

ocotr)N

oq
oroN

:O)::E':E::::: :

s, 
=' 

E,q.!.=€= i, = P * g sfs ,t2;r$Ei ,FE .FE {3i E e222'>3=' e + e a e 9

=E s====e= sB +s s8
I e r ?ssssE E E E E E EEH Eililililil$ E; EH EE

.::
S,EE,6qG,
oko
o:o
=d =;o;otr)ooooooor(o

EoJt!
F
o

:o
o(9t
IL
oJJ
lrJ

=
(o (o
OONNc, (t

oo

(o (o (o (o (o (o
booo99NNr{c!SS
;b;6dotsss=E=
booooo

(f,N:99N6@N9)9L(r)l'-toFcqio i{ c., F- () q)
i6;oroms

YLLEoo6oo)i.c'rqqq
,E,ErEJ

-=-==:^==a-'!H iE 6F ir inE iE intr

(o

5Q

j
C'o
o
trJ

_|^
mmF

o)Nolo)
O-(o cD o)oloro

q
tr)

o) o)O)OIN
o6@o.o@ (t) o,

J-j

O)N
d
or_

qo(9

oo
=UJo

N\d' O) O)ooo@c)co6

qo(.)

N O@r-(-oF-o n naclaca6 o (o-o)@(o(f); o (.)(f)F-1"-oN
@ --(os

I I t8
cicitdd -

oo
tri

o olo ol
d cil{ *l

I

I

oqo(o
N

-lc
=lol
E]
1l
Gct.-l
EDI

ol
I

-ltrJLol
EI
El'61
(L

I

O)N
@(o
o)-

Nsooo
Oco--(ONr+*N<(oS
ri-oid<ci c"jooNr'-(ON
r-Osr I

oIro
oo
ci

oJoo

(o (o
oo
NN
o) o)

oo

::
c"i -oor)$

toJ
F
qd

t
utY
o

@
o
o.l
(n

o

(l,
t-oc)

i<o
0)

o
Eo
i6

JJoo

.o (l' (O

oooNC{N
+sls

rooo

s p€
oc)Nrr(g)o

izLoOoo
oofrit=EiE i
= h = =bdI F O OF

o

(!
.cl

(EotE*r-bdF 5Fzr=

.EIE=oEc.r-aoc,o'; o)Ltr(6;fz

,l
6lo

I

EI
fzl

o
F

=@
(o9n(DO

c0 d)



ro
og)
tlt
.L

\
(f)

f.-
N-
N

\(o
f..-N.
N

3 E 8R53qB3b68 P $EE$;5ESE
"l -Nrr Fo-
al

8R53sqEEENoNN-1"'@S-cooro)<-co$(!,q)o-;t5: '-io-'5
5

o<)qqq
o@(o@qo)

o NO)o rr) o)o
ci d c., tcio (0 ccNsl

No.'qq
(o (or,N

oooqqq
ooo600N$\i

too!i-oo
=l ci ciXoo:L N N

-L(Etcl
E'rl
OI

L

oor) olr)ci tol@.dOO-T 'L'
I

I

I
L

I

:6psgEO'o6q?eooooF8

oIzoil

:!::!::d, 6 S, E d' tEf5,r.E,[2FaaoYo2i
= -' = ': -Lg 3 * P s sHgE EB E3F
= 3 = 3 = 33

:oL
oi
od
az
Fo

:o
lrJ

otoo
Eo
IL

(!
.ct

Gl ro(E {-r -'r o9oo: -
=Jl!gEE
CS?go
(U

-

(o (o
ooNNd) o)

oo

c.,o6(Do,(Y' (O({t N

.g(,)
o
o
EJ

=:Am6F

Oqoo$

oqoo*
oqooN

oqoo
No

E

3(ll
o-

. E -C: : :! : :o :=o
H EEE S EEEEElL 44\4-rZ1\Zo zZZZZOZZ<)q, <<<<<.i)<<u)
I 333398338E 5il**il*8ilil

ooo

o
E
Gz

,lol
=I

toJ
F
06
t
lUY
m

(0 @@(o (o
o ooo oN NNN N
N NNN N
b ooo o

(t) (o (o (o (o-b o o oo
N N $I NN; b E dd
E (\I NNi -o o o oo

(o (o
ooNNooNN
oo

i
(Y' (Cioooc)N

.voo
o
F)

= =bo c0F

toJ
F
od
&
IUY
6

.l
6

"l

slH 555 5o sfs$ .t

j
o(,
o
FJaLa F

o d)co F

eO@(oa90crco

l<oo
o
=)
o c0F

N (.)COoo oo(.) (O (O

E
z

o)o.
F

tao
o,

o
EJ

F
trl d]d)co co F

s(g
(l)9No<)



(o
o)

r!L

N OOoi)1.*(OS-N6 d @o,qqqqqe
- 6i tr)oso)(o(oo)o+ ct -NF-a-)oSN-6J

or(oO)t'.-(o$-Nooo60)oo@
r; ci + o, <ci c.r oi o
-NN(')rO$l'.r

o
-$

q
<-

(o
u?
Nro
ca

ooou?qq
N6t$

o (O OrO)@o lo o)@(od c.i ai oaio ut o,r)$qN

oooqqc
oooooo(o+$

o) o) ooqoqq
No@(,)() |

oqoo$

oo
C;
rO(o

(oooooo
Nooror.(,6o(o@

ood
LO(o

(oq
F.roo-

NOO(O@$rorf)()F-(O
ONf.-or)$tOoNooN()

' ' -I\ 
I I

@ N(,(O(O@$tsL @ -oqul\q
=l N oNF-orsLr)i io oNoroNr)X o -l'*<l
-l(oc.-t
.s,l
o

toJ
F
qd
dUx
dl

o
E

=(t(L

: : I :Er : : : : i : : :c : : : : : :

; ps=EE- s, .= p . p E,E g *E==EEgE,F'4EEEF, E fr .r E 'r 066 'r i r EfE3333i! iiiEz, e r I & e =o6=o I 2 I l=-e=z===g=Upl== gE ge gE;^E g= gE$gsssss
;oeeeee a; ;8 EFEE E€ EBEaEESEPo dNNO(Ono r<.)osr- 6 - I s 5 b99 - = o <tr$r
o NNNNNN o o o I 5 6oq 

= 
3 = 

83333383oo(o(o(g@ ; <o (o (o(o(o

zoN
E

Foo
UTo
111IILILo

:

JoooIoo
J
fJ

:o
IUl-
oz
UJoJoo

(o (o(0(o@@(o(o(o
b oooooooo
N NNNNNNNN- bbbabd.ds stssssss
o oooooooo

(0 @ @ @ (o @@(oF H F H F FFF
= ;5 ; aj a aAF{ s s q s qaa
5 5 5 5 5 555

6 (O(O(O(O
ol b oooo
=i 

N NNNN
O @ @@@@

N NNNN

o oooo

Joo
o
EL
i6 in in ii in ir in in i5

vi<J OOoor99
-!0qq
F-JE--]EdSr'-So
= :=--= rr = = O = =i5 coinili! tr o to tr at co

o

(6

.ct

(E co

EEF EE _a =bxq
=0)=E!-"o (.))
U''tr o)t-tr(t;'rz

o ooo(o6to6Lo6 @oo(roooo- ooooooooo rON-

avoo
d)
o
lrJo
d.ooU
d.

(o (o
oo
C!N
€@
al N

oo

:o)r@NoromF-

I
(,,
o,

o
IFJ
FF
u=vF(DmF

co ()OrO)
O ONF-
o(9 @@@

l.oo
o

rC
F ::=tr dI comd)

@oo)
(f, @
(f, (O

tsPoXoUo(D
@ dicic.r-oo ooooo oro()$

E
z

oo
t-

s(ga5
(OFCNoo



t-
o6'
(oo

N
o;o
ro-

P336R3\s:s36qE€EsE$6aI+$$6o85\SNNr

P33ER3\S:3853535,; i ii ; ; - - cci c.i - + o > r'- ^i sVio+ 66; s + d to i (") o $ r o.'l'i'i r- i I r i i , - q5 ' ' '

ssRRRRRRRRRssPEE:-+++$$sdss-rN${sDdr*su3883338333

o
E

t
'6,

o

o
E

'6o

Nq
O)o
ro_

EE EEE{{*'EEzzz<<4.<< d d

> z::::.9.9.9 .9.9.9EEEEEE
=f551={+${${aaaaau)

:c : : :;9::a6.o.9.9.9ZLLP'a-
' ' 5f 5zz<<<<<,h (h 6

(o(o
ooNN
@@NN
OO

(r) r@s(o (')
-N

(0 (o (o (o (o (o (o (o (o (o (o @ (o

HHHFHFHHHHHFF:;:;;:;aibbbaaaaaNsNssqssasasa
ooooooooooooo

6idi---airi;-ri-cis666srlNF-trl$r'-$rfq)66ocn6oooctoor(oo)dic\i;NTNOTNoNNN

o

(t
-o

(E <o(5*rs8EF Es-\=bite
=9Ego
Lol-=(!E'fz

.l
(!l

"l

oo.
F J

FoF

=(g
@CNo)o

::::=::::===: ==i! E 6 E in in i5 in i5 m co co co co E


